



SPRINTCAR ASSOCIATION of W.A. (INC) **CONSTITUTION**

1. TITLE

The name of the Association shall be the "SPRINTCAR ASSOCIATION of WESTERN AUSTRALIA (INC) and such name shall not be changed nor the Association dissolved without the concurrence of three-fourths of its financial members present and voting at a special meeting of which fourteen days notice shall be given to all financial members.

2. INTERPRETATION

In this Constitution, except where the context or subject matter requires a different construction, "this Association" shall mean SPRINTCAR ASSOCIATION of WESTERN AUSTRALIA (INC). "the committee" shall mean the Executive/Management Committee of the SPRINTCAR ASSOCIATION of WESTERN AUSTRALIA (INC). "Financial Member" shall mean and include every member who has paid all monies due and payable under these rules. The Association shall be affiliated with any other Association or Club as the Executive/Management Committee may from time to time decide. All cases of dispute as to the correct interpretation of these rules shall be decided by the Executive Committee whose decision shall be final.

3. OBJECTS OF THE ASSOCIATION

To encourage the sport of car racing, to promote the spirit of sport and good fellowship amongst members.

To control and guard the interest of members competing in motor races or competition in any part of the Commonwealth.

To assist in promoting and organizing speed meetings in harmony with other bodies with similar interests.

To submit to promoters any terms that may be of mutual benefit.

To act with affiliated and similar bodies in any matter affecting their mutual welfare either in Australia or abroad.

To encourage the social side of motor racing and add to the Member's technical knowledge by discussions on subjects of interest, such as visits to factories and reading of short papers and lectures by eminent drivers, engineers etc.

4. GOVERNMENT OF THE ASSOCIATION

The Association shall be governed by an Executive/Management Committee consisting of a President, Secretary/Treasurer and Vice President, a minimum of THREE Committee persons and a minimum of five (5) of whom shall constitute a quorum for the dispatch of business at a duly convened meeting of the Executive/Management Committee.

The Executive/Management Committee shall have power to appoint a Sub-committee to deal with all matters that may affect the Association or any of its members

Any vacancies occurring during the period of elected officers, re-election shall take place at the next General Meeting.

5. APPLICATION OF RULES

Every Member of the Association shall be considered to be acquainted with, and shall submit to, and be bound by these Rules and by any other Rules and Regulations made in conformity with these Rules. Ie: "Code of Conduct"

6. ALTERATION OF RULES

The Constitution of Rules shall not be altered except at the Annual General Meeting or at a Special General Meeting called for that purpose, and no Rules shall be altered or amended unless with the consent of 75% of Members voting at a meeting to amend the Constitution.

7. APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP

Any person desiring to become a Member of the Association shall submit a signed application and that application shall be presented to the Executive/Management Committee and shall be accepted as a member by a vote of two-thirds majority of the Committee.

Each newly elected member shall immediately upon his election and upon payment of a subscription, shall become a financial member of the Association.

The Executive/Management Committee may at any time for any reason refuse to accept any application as a Member of the Association.

Should an applicant for Membership be rejected the Applicant shall immediately be sent written notice thereof and the Committee shall have power to send such notice without stating the reason for the decision.

Rejected persons may re-apply, however. No application for Membership shall be considered more than once in any calendar year

8. NOTICE OF ELECTION TO MEMBERSHIP

When a person has been elected to membership, pursuant to the foregoing rule, he will be notified by the Secretary in writing of the result of his/her membership.

9. LIFE MEMBER

Any person, of five or more years membership and in good standing, who has tendered the Association meritorious service may, on the recommendation of the Executive/Management Committee, be elected to Life Membership

10. HONORARY MEMBERS

The Association may at any General Meeting, by a three-fourths majority of members present and voting at such meeting, elect as Honorary Members any person who is a financial member of an affiliated Association or other recognized car club for a period not exceeding one month. Such Membership may be cancelled at any time by the Executive/Management Committee

11. ARREARS OF SUBSCRIPTIONS

Any Member (except a Life Member or Honorary Member) whose subscription remains unpaid sixty days after becoming payable shall be notified by the Secretary that, if payment thereof be not made within fourteen days after receipt of notice, he/she shall be deemed to have resigned and on no account be permitted or eligible to hold office vote or compete in any of the associations competitions or otherwise entitled to any of the privileges of membership. Such Members may, however, with the approval of the Executive/Management Committee, be reinstated to Membership of the Association on payment of all arrears of monies payable to the Association and shall be there upon entitled to the same privileges he held prior to such resignation of membership upon this Rule.

12. SUBSCRIPTIONS

In the event of an applicant for membership being accepted after the commencement of the financial year, his subscription will become due again at the commencement of the new financial year.

13. RESIGNATIONS

Any person whose subscription is not in arrears may resign his membership at any time by giving notice in writing to the Association. The resignation shall be effective as from the date of the meeting of the Association at which the resignation is received.

14. FINANCIAL YEAR AND SUBSCRIPTIONS

The financial year of the Association shall commence on the first day of July in every year, and Association subscriptions shall be due and payable on the first day of August in every year. The Association subscriptions shall be as determined by the Executive/Management Committee of the Association.

15. VOTING

Voting at all Committee Meeting shall be taken by a show of hands, provided that in such cases where a vote is being taken under Clauses 19 and 20, such voting shall be by secret ballot. The President or Chairman of any Executive/Management Committee Meeting shall have a deliberate as well as a casting vote.

All Members, except Honorary Members, shall be entitled to vote, provided they are financial, or a Life Member. The President or Chairman of the Meeting shall have a casting vote as well as a deliberate vote.

16. OBLIGATIONS OF MEMBERS

Resignations from office will be deemed to have been received and accepted in any of the following instances:-

- (a) Any Member of the Executive failing to attend three consecutive meetings of the Executive Committee.
- (b) The President, Secretary or Treasurer failing to attend three consecutive General meetings of the Association.

PROVIDED ALWAYS that where leave of absence has been granted, the foregoing not apply. Where, however, the resignation takes effect under this Rule, then the member, or members, concerned shall not be eligible for re-election to his former, or any other office during the currency of the financial year in which such resignation becomes effective.

17. EXECUTIVE/MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Executive/Management Committee shall meet monthly or on any other occasion as may be deemed necessary. Five members of the Executive/Management Committee shall form a quorum. Whenever practicable, three day's previous notice of such meeting shall be given to each member of the Committee. The Minutes of the Executive/Management Committee Meetings shall be open to any member of the Executive/Management Committee only.

18. REMOVAL OF OFFICERS

Should it appear to the Executive/Management Committee that any officer is not properly performing his/her duties, the Executive/Management Committee may, by a two-thirds majority of its members present and voting, declare such office vacant, providing that any officer so removed may, within seven days of such declaration, demand a ballot of financial members upon the question of his removal from office.

18 REMOVAL OF OFFICERS (CONTD)

Notice of the intention to take such ballot shall be given to the President at the General Meeting next preceeding the taking of the ballot, and the result thereof shall be binding on the Executive/Management Committee. Any member removed from office under this Rule may not be elected to any office whatsoever during the currency of the financial year in which he is removed.

19. SUSPENSION OF MEMBERSHIP

The Executive/Management Committee shall, subject to the provisions herein contained, be empowered by a two-thirds majority of its members present and voting to suspend, fine, expel or penalize any Member of the Association for any breach or infringement of the Rules of the Association, or for any misconduct unbecoming the sport of sprintcar racing or for any misapplication of the funds of the Association, or any non-compliance with or disobedience of any order contained in any resolution of the Executive/Management Committee, or for any conduct in its opinion unworthy of a member.

“Code of Conduct” appendix “A” to be read in conjunction with this Constitution

PROVIDED THAT such member shall have first been given notice, in writing, of the allegations or matters of complaint made against.

Any member so suspended, fined, penalized or removed may within seven (7) days from the date of suspension, fine, penalized or removal appeal to the Executive/Management Committee for a hearing of his appeal. A/any Appeal will be heard by an Independent Tribunal Panel appointed by the Committee of the Association

20. POWERS OF EXECUTIVE/MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive/Management Committee shall, subject to the confirmation or otherwise of its actions by the next ensuing General Meeting, have the following powers:-

- (a) To demand and collect all subscriptions and dues payable by members.
- (b) To incur all necessary expenses for the proper upkeep and business of the Association and to pay all sums so incurred.
- (c) To submit matters as may seem proper and of sufficient importance to the members of the Association for decision by ballot.

Provided that all acts of the Executive/Management Committee done in pursuance of the powers granted by these Rules shall have full force and effect and be of full validity until such acts shall be confirmed or otherwise dealt with by the next ensuing General Meeting of the Association or by these Rules otherwise provided.

ALL Members on the Executive/Management Committee must be financial or life members of the Association and all have the right to vote

21. VACANCIES ON EXECUTIVE/MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Executive/Management Committee shall, subject to the Rules, have power to fill any vacancy which shall occur either in the Executive/Management Committee or in any other office of the Association. Any Member appointed by the Executive/Management Committee to fill such vacancy shall hold office until the financial members shall meet to appoint a member to fill such office.

22. DUTIES OF OFFICERS

PRESIDENT The President shall preside at all meetings of the Association and of the Executive Management Committee, and shall preserve good order so that the business of the meetings may be properly conducted. He shall see that the Minutes are read and confirmed and upon such reading and confirmation sign same, and shall endorse all accounts passed for payment.

22. DUTIES OF OFFICERS (contd)

SECRETARY/TREASURER The Secretary/treasurer shall collect all subscriptions and all other monies due or payable to the Association. He/She shall convene all meetings, keep a complete list of members, together with their addresses and date of appointment, and shall conduct the correspondence of the Association and give all such notices as may be required to be given to Members. He/she shall record the Minutes of all properly convened meetings, and shall submit same to the next ensuing meeting for confirmation. He/she shall keep a record of the amount of subscriptions & nomination fees due by each member, showing also the date of subsequent payment. He/she shall keep correct account books, showing the financial affairs of the Association, and shall prepare, and submit to the Annual General Meeting, Financial Statements, as approved by the Executive/Management Committee showing a Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss statement. The Secretary/treasurer shall make and present financial reports of the Association's financial position monthly to the Executive/Management Committee or General Meeting of the Members of the Association. The Secretary/treasurer shall also submit all accounts in excess of \$5.00 to the Executive/Management Committee for passing for payment, and when so passed, shall see that the President's signature is affixed to the account. Petty Cash advances of not more than \$10.00 shall be made as and when required, and the Secretary/treasurer shall, on calling for further advances, immediately report to the Executive/Management Committee the method in which the previous Petty cash advance was expended by him/her. All cheques drawn in excess of \$5.00 shall be marked "Not Negotiable", and shall be drawn to the order of that person in whose favour the cheque is made. The Secretary/treasurer shall, together with the President or nominated signatory/s, sign all cheques drawn on the Association's behalf.

23. ELECTION OF OFFICE BEARERS

Nominations shall be received ten (10) days prior to the Annual General Meeting of each year, for the purpose of electing the following officers:

President, Vice President, Secretary/Treasurer and minimum of Three (3) Committee members.

The Annual General Meeting to be held within four (4) months of the end of the financial year – as per Incorporated Associations Act

Financial Year of the Sprintcar Association of WA (Inc) ends 30th June

24. GENERAL LAW

- (a) The President and Secretary shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting or a Summoned Special General Meeting of the Association. All other officers of the Association shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting, except in the case of extraordinary vacancies, when they may be elected at any General Meeting.
- (b) Nominations for elective officers shall be in the hands of the Secretary at ten (10) days prior to the date fixed for the election of officers, in accordance with these rules.
- (d) All nominees for office may, subject to paragraph (b) hereof, be proposed and seconded
- (e) Members nominated for election to any office, if absent from the Annual General Meeting must accept the nomination in writing to the Secretary at least one week prior to the date fixed for the election of officers, otherwise such nomination shall be invalid.
- (f) In the event of two or more members being nominated for any one office, a secret ballot shall be taken, and all financial members present at a General Meeting shall be eligible to vote.

24. GENERAL LAW (contd)

- (g) The nominees receiving the greatest number of valid votes cast shall be deemed elected to the office in respect of which such vote was taken. In the event of two or more nominees receiving an equal number of votes, the Returning Officer appointed to conduct such election shall exercise a casting vote.
- (h) A Returning Officer and two, or more, scrutineers shall be appointed to conduct every election of officers of the Association.
- (i) Any nominees for office in the Association who shall be proved to have canvassed for votes for himself/herself in connection with any election of officers may, upon resolution of the members present at any General Meeting, be deemed disqualified and ineligible for election, and, if elected prior to the passing of such resolution, shall be disqualified from holding the office to which he/she has been elected and from holding any office in the Association during the then current financial year of the Association and may be suspended or expelled under Rule 20 hereof.

25. ORDER OF BUSINESS

The business at ordinary General Meetings of the Association shall, unless otherwise determined by the Meeting in accordance with Rule 27 hereof, be conducted in the following order:-

- (1) Reading of the Minutes of the previous meeting and business arising
- (2) Financial Reports (if any) and their adoption or otherwise dealt with
- (3) Reading, of general correspondence
- (4) New members
- (5) Adjourned business
- (6) General Reports and their consideration and adoption or otherwise
- (7) Notices of Motion
- (8) General Business
- (9) Election of Officers at meetings fixed for that purpose

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting is required to be held within four (4) months after the end of the Associations financial year (section 23(1) of the Act)

26. SUSPENSION OF THE ORDER OR BUSINESS

It shall be competent, by a vote of at least two-thirds of the members present, for a General Meeting to suspend the Order of Business in Rule 26 hereof PROVIDED THE EFFECT OF SUCH SUSPENSION SHALL NOT MEAN THE RESCINDING OF ANY RESOLUTION PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED BY THE ASSOCIATION.

27. NOTICES OF MOTION TO TAKE PRECEDENCE

Any Notice of Motion shall, unless otherwise agreed by the meeting, take precedence in the order in which it stands in the Minute Book in relation to other Notices of Motion, and will lapse if the member, or some member on his behalf, be not present to move the same when the order of the day for such notices to be read.

28. NOTICE FOR ADJOURNMENT

When a motion at any meeting for the Adjournment of any business or a debate to any stated date or times has been carried, such motion shall not in any way be rescinded or abrogated at such meeting unless with the consent of the mover of the motion for such adjournment.

29. NOTICE OF MOTION

Any member may, at any General Meeting of the Association, give Notice of Motion for a resolution to be discussed at a future meeting by handing a copy thereof to the President or Chairman who shall at once read it to the meeting, but without any discussion thereon.

30. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING

When the Motion for the adjournment of any meeting has been carried, or the meeting adjourns through the effluxion of time, the business then in hand or undisposed of shall, unless otherwise agreed, have precedence at the next ordinary General Meeting.

31. NO MEMBER TO OBTAIN A DISCUSSION ETC.

No member shall be allowed to obtain a discussion upon any subject through the medium of personal correspondence. All correspondence having reference to any matter that has been remitted to the Committee for consideration and report shall, for the time being, be deemed the property of the members of the Committee or as the case may be. Such correspondence shall, however, be read in open meeting at the time the report is presented if any members so desire.

32. STANDING ORDERS AND RULES OF DEBATE.

- (1) The first member who attracts the attention of the Chairman shall have precedence in speaking.
- (2) Members addressing the meeting shall direct their remarks to the Presiding Officer and shall remain standing whilst so doing.
- (3) No discussion shall take place on any motion unless such motion is first duly proposed and seconded. Only one amendment upon any motion shall be received at a time and such amendment must be disposed of before any further amendment thereto may be proposed.
- (4) When a motion shall have been duly proposed and seconded, the President or Chairman of such meeting shall, unless some member rises to oppose it or to propose any amendment, at once proceed to take the vote thereon, but no amendment shall be in order or received after the proposer of the motion has replied to any debate thereon.
- (5) It shall be competent at any time during the debate for a member who has not already spoken to the question before the Chair, to move without discussion, "That the question be now put", which, on being duly seconded and carried, shall without any further discussion thereon, except as provided by Rule 41 hereof, entail the submission of the motion at once to the vote of the meeting.
- (6) No member, except the mover of the original motion, shall speak more than once on the same motion, except in explanation.
- (7) No member shall, subject to Rule 41 hereof, be allowed more than five minutes to speak to a motion, unless with the concurrence of the meeting as provided in the said Rule.
- (8) The mover of the original motion shall have the right of reply, after which the motion shall forthwith be put to the meeting.
- (9) Questions of Order shall be decided by the President or Chairman of the meeting whose ruling shall be final, unless challenged by a formal motion submitted and carried by the majority of the members present at such meeting.

32. STANDING ORDERS & RULES OF DEBATE (cont'd)

(10) Should any question occupy the attention of the meeting for fifteen minutes, the discussion of such question shall, unless the meeting decide as provided by Rule 41 hereof, by resolution (carried by a majority of members present) to extend the time for discussion of the matter in question be deemed to have closed, and the President or Chairman of the meeting shall forthwith call on the mover to reply.

33. MOVING DISSENT FROM THE CHAIRMAN'S RULING.

Any member dissatisfied with any ruling of the President or Chairman of the meeting may move a motion of dissent as follows:- "That the Chairman's ruling be dissented from". Such motion shall then be put to the meeting by any ACTING CHAIRMAN without discussion and as provided by Rule 44 hereof. Except the President or Chairman of the meeting who may explain his reasons for the ruling, the mover only shall speak to the motion.

The Acting Chairman shall not give a ruling on the question involved in the Chairman's ruling.

The Acting Chairman's ruling shall only be discussed from a direct appeal to the meeting, the question being put by the Acting Chairman without discussion.

34. MEMBERS RISING TO SPEAK

Any member desiring to speak shall rise in his place and address the Chairman of the meeting. If two, or more, members rise at the same time, the Chairman shall call upon the member who, in his opinion, first rose to speak.

35. MEMBER TO RESUME HIS SEAT.

Any member speaking shall at once resume his seat:-

- (a) If the Chairman rises to speak; or
- (b) If a point of order is raised; and shall not resume his speech until the point of order is decided.

36. MOTIONS: HOW DEALT WITH

All motions shall be:-

- (1) Duly proposed and seconded
- (2) Of an affirmative character
- (3) The property of the meeting
- (4) May be adjourned from time to time until a decision is reached

37. MOTIONS MAY BE AMENDED

A motion may, subject to Rule 33 (3) hereof, be amended at any time during a debate thereon by:-

- (1) Striking out certain words
- (2) Adding certain words; or
- (3) Striking out certain words and inserting others in their place

38. AMENDMENT BECOMES THE MOTION

Upon any amendment being carried, it shall take the place of and become the original motion, and may then be further amended, subject to Rule 33 (3) hereof, until a decision thereon is reached by being finally submitted to the vote of the meeting of the Association.

39. MOTIONS MAY BE SUPERCEDED

A Motion may, at any time, be superceded:-

- (1) By another motion discharging or striking it from the agenda, or notice paper
- (2) By a motion "That the next business be proceeded with" being moved, seconded and resolved in the affirmative by the meeting dealing therewith without any discussion.

40. TIME ALLOWED FOR SPEAKING

The mover of any original motion may be allowed fifteen minutes to introduce it and, notwithstanding the closure motion "That the question now be put" being carried, the mover shall be allowed five minutes to reply. No other member shall be allowed to speak for more than five minutes at any one time unless a two-thirds majority of the members present, by resolution, agrees to the time limit of any speaker being extended to such length as may be specified in such resolution.

41. MOTIONS CANNOT AGAIN BE MOVED.

Any motion agreed to or negated by a meeting of the Association cannot again be moved thereat or at any subsequent meeting unless a Special General Meeting of members of the Association duly convened to consider Notice of Motion to rescind or adopt (as the case may be), must be carried by a two-thirds majority of the members present at such Special General Meeting.

42. MOTIONS: HOW PUT

The President shall put all questions to a meeting of members of the Association in a distinct and audible voice and that those in favour say "aye" and those to the contrary say "no" and by asking the "ayes" to vote first, and afterwards the "noes" and he shall declare his opinion which has a majority. Any ten members rising may demand a division. The President or Chairman shall take the vote by asking the "ayes" to go to the right and the "noes" to the left of the Chair.

43. MOTIONS TO DISAGREE WITH THE CHAIRMAN'S RULING.

When a motion to disagree with the ruling of the Chair has been duly proposed and seconded, the President or Chairman shall leave the Chair until the motion of dissent has been disposed of by the meeting as provided by Rule 34 hereof.

44. NO MEMBER TO SPEAK

No member, except to a point of order, may speak at any question after it has been put to the meeting by the President or Chairman, nor during a division.

45. VOTING OF MEMBERS

(1) Every financial member present during a meeting must vote for or against

deleted 2010 (2) Financial members may lodge a "Proxy" vote providing the Member (called appointing member) has lodged in writing another member who is a natural person to be the "proxy" of the appointing member and to attend and vote on behalf of the appointing member at any General Meeting. This authority must be in writing with the Secretary prior to the commencement of a/any General Meeting

46. QUORUM

The quorum of any General Meeting or Special General Meeting of the Association shall be constituted by the President (or Chairman or Acting Chairman), the Secretary (or Acting Secretary), and ten (10) other financial members, all being present in person, or by proxy

47. MEMBERS CHARGED WITH OFFENCE

In addition to the provisions of Rule 20 hereof, in the event of any member charged with any subject of complaint or conduct which the Committee may consider unsportsmanlike or ungentlemanly or prejudicial to the interest of the Association, he may be called before the Executive/Management Committee and, failing a satisfactory explanation, he may, subject to these Rules, be cautioned, suspended, fined, penalized or required to resign, or expelled from membership of the Association.

48. OFFENCES/HEARING BY COMMITTEE

The Executive/Management Committee shall, where questions under the preceding Rule are to be considered, give notice in writing to the member charged and the time and place he is required to attend before the Executive/Management Committee and particulars of the charge or complaint and before coming to a decision, shall hear any explanation which the member charged may desire to give, together with any evidence tendered by him.

49. NOTICE TO MEMBERS CHARGED

Notice of the Committee's intention to consider or review a member's conduct under these Rules shall be forwarded to him at his last address shown upon the books of the Association, by prepaid Registered letter sent through the Post Office at least three days prior to the meeting at which such matter is to be considered.

50. MAJORITY NECESSARY TO SUSPEND MEMBER

No member shall be cautioned, suspended, fined, penalized, required to resign, or expelled unless the resolution is supported by at least two-thirds of the members of the Committee present and voting and as provided by Rule 20 hereof.

51. MEMBERS RIGHT OF APPEAL

Any member cautioned, suspended, fined, penalized, required to resign, or expelled under these Rules, shall have such right of appeal as is provided by Rule 20 hereof, and in the event of resignation or expulsion shall forfeit all rights to or claim upon the Association or its property or funds. A/any Appeal will be heard by an Independent Tribunal Panel appointed by the Executive/Management Committee of the Association

52. VESTING IN PROPERTY

All real and personal property of the Association shall vest in the Association in its corporate name as is provided by the provisions of the Associations Incorporation Act 1895-1969.

53. SOCIAL FUND

All profits from social or entertainments promoted by the Association shall be credited to a "Social Club Account" in the name of the Association and the monies so received shall be paid into a bank nominated by the Executive Committee. Withdrawals upon such account shall be made by the Seal-holders of the Association.

54. MINUTES

The Minutes of any General Meeting or Special General Meeting of the Association shall be open to inspection by all financial members of the Association on the giving of reasonable notice to the Secretary of his, or their, desire to inspect the Minute Book containing the same.

55. SUB-COMMITTEES

The Executive Committee may, subject to the direction and control of the members of the Association in General Meeting, appoint sub-committee to perform any of the duties involving on the Committee in accordance with this Constitution and Rules and may confer on each sub-committee such authority as may from time to time be deemed necessary, but so that any sub-committee shall operate under the direction and control of the Executive Committee.

56. NOTICE OF MEETINGS

At least seven days notice to members specifying the place, day and hour of Meeting and, in the case of special business, the general nature of such business, shall be given by the Secretary, in writing, to all financial members of the Association.

57 OMISSION TO GIVE NOTICE

Accidental omission to give notice under Rule 59 hereof to any member SHALL NOT invalidate any resolution passed at any meeting of the Association.

58 HOW NOTICE SERVED

A notice may be served by the Association upon any member either personally or be sending it through the Post Office in a prepaid envelope addressed to such member at his last registered place of address appearing in the books and records of the Association.

59 DISSOLUTION

The Club shall only be dissolved if;

On the winding up of the Association, any property of the Association remains after satisfaction of the debts and liabilities of the Association and the costs, charges and expenses of that winding up, that property shall be distributed:-

- (a) to another Association incorporated under the Act; or
- (b) for charitable purposes

which incorporated association or purposes, as the case requires shall be determined by resolution of the members when authorizing and directing the Committee under section 33(3) of the Act to prepare a distribution plan for the distribution of the surplus property of the Association.

Amended Constitution
Annual General Meeting
19th September 2010



SPRINTCAR ASSOCIATION OF W.A. (Inc)

ABN 47 030 691 201

(not registered for GST)

SAWA (Inc) Constitution Annexure “A”

CODE OF CONDUCT

ALL Drivers, crews, owners and relevant parties associated with each race team, must not use words, or engage in conduct, which brings, or is likely to bring the SAWA (Inc) into disrepute within the community. They must conduct themselves in a professional manner with a positive attitude towards the Club, spectators, representatives, officials or any other bodies associated within the Speedway both locally and at National levels.

Drivers will be held accountable for the actions of their crew or any other persons in their company at a SAWA (Inc) sanctioned competition or event. Misconduct on the part of any of these persons, may, at the discretion of officials, representatives of the Management Committee of SAWA (Inc) result in disqualification of that driver's points, and or prize money from that dates racing event, suspension, fine, or expulsion from the SAWA (Inc)

No driver, crew or official may at any time use profanity, threats, or physical violence towards any other competitor/driver, official or spectator.

The consumption of illegal drugs is strictly prohibited from any race venue, or location of which SAWA (Inc) is visiting for racing events. This also includes away from home accommodation both prior and after racing event of which SAWA (Inc) members are in representation or may be seen to be in representation of the Club.

Consumption of intoxicating liquor is strictly prohibited in the pit area until after the final race at the venue we are competing at has been completed. Drivers, Owners, Officials or Pit crews shall not partake of any intoxicating liquor for at least twelve (12) hours prior to the commencement of racing. Any person not complying shall be suspended until they prove their sobriety, and shall submit himself or herself to any test that may be deemed necessary.

Under no circumstances are drivers, crews, owners, officials or any other parties associated with a team to “take” property from another competitors pit bay without the consent of the competitor/or crew associated with that competitor.

Interference, disruption or destruction of another competitors sprintcar, transporter, any associated tools, equipment or personal belongings will not be tolerated. Offenders may face expulsion from SAWA (Inc) and/or Police charges may be laid.

Discrimination of race, sex, colour or physical disabilities of any fellow member, official, competitor or spectator will not be tolerated. Offensive language and or verbal impertinence relating to a persons race, sex, colour or physical disability will not be tolerated.

Complaints are to be lodged immediately either to the President or Secretary of the Club and an official (not involved with the immediate complaint) or a member from the Executive/Management Committee present at the sanctioned race event. A verbal complaint must be lodged prior to the completion of the sanctioned meeting or within seven (7) consecutive days in writing to the Executive/Management Committee.

Failure of any member to adhere to the SAWA (Inc) Code of Conduct may lead to the disqualification, elimination and/or loss of prize money and /or points for the event at which the complaint was lodged.